
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
EDUCATION, CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY PANEL

TUESDAY, 18 OCTOBER 2016 AT 6.30 PM

CONFERENCE ROOM B - SECOND FLOOR, CIVIC OFFICES

Telephone enquiries to Lisa Gallacher 02392 834056
Email: lisa.gallacher@portsouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above.

Membership

Councillor Will Purvis (Chair)
Councillor David Tompkins (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Ben Dowling

Councillor Paul Godier
Councillor Suzy Horton
Councillor Gemma New

Standing Deputies

Councillor Dave Ashmore
Councillor Ken Ellcome

Councillor Hannah Hockaday
Councillor Matthew Winnington

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of Interests 

3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 26 September 2016 (Pages 1 - 8)

RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 
2016 are confirmed and signed by the chair as a correct record.

4  Review into how well Portsmouth City Council and partners are 



2

preventing and dealing with child sexual exploitation 

The panel will also hear from three young people about the services and 
support they have received in relation to CSE. 

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social 
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records 
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue.



 
 

 
1 

 

EDUCATION, CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Education, Children & Young People Scrutiny 
Panel held on Monday, 26 September 2016 at 6.30 pm at the Civic Offices, 
Portsmouth 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Will Purvis (in the Chair) 
 David Tompkins 

Ben Dowling 
Paul Godier 
Suzy Horton 
Gemma New 
 
Officers 
Alison Jeffrey, Director of Children's Services  
 
Witnesses 
Leyton Higgins, Charter Academy 
Kelly Huggett, PCC Health Development Officer  
Ross Lee, PCC Licensing Officer 
Clare Rhodes, Portsmouth Academy 
 

 
61. Apologies for absence (AI 1) 

 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

62. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
Councillor Godier declared a personal interest as his sister-in-law works for 
the youth offending team.  
 

63. Minutes of the previous meeting - 5 September 2016 (AI 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Education, Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Panel held on 5 September 2016 be confirmed and 
signed as a correct record.  
 

64. Review into how well Portsmouth City Council and partners are 
preventing and dealing with child sexual exploitation (AI 4) 
 
The chair invited everyone to introduce themselves which they then did.  He 
particularly welcomed the external witnesses to the meeting and invited each 
witness to give a brief overview of their work.   
 
Leyton Higgins advised that he had started at Charter Academy in December 
2015 as the Year 10 Learning Manager with a responsibility for safeguarding.  
Prior to this he had worked at the City Council within the Children's Social 



 
2 

 

Care team as both an education advisor and youth advisor; therefore he had 
seen how things are run from both sides.  
 
Clare Rhodes, Student Services Manager, Portsmouth Academy advised that 
she is the safeguarding lead for the school and she works closely with Leyton 
and also Kelly Huggett, Health Development Officer at PCC in sharing data 
and helping to educate and provide support to her pupils.  As teaching staff 
see pupils daily they are often the first to notice signs of CSE with their pupils.  
 
Clare advised that she also works closely with the PCC MASH (Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub) team, who she described as the 'front door' for schools as 
they will contact the MASH team when they have referrals or need advice.  
The MASH team also have contacted Clare to obtain information about 
children as well and this working relationship works very well.  Both Clare and 
Leyton advised that they also work closely with the Children's Social Care 
team and other agencies and felt that a lot of the best work is done in an ad-
hoc manner.   Leyton and Clare advised that they are invited to attend 
strategy meetings which is useful as they can provide intelligence about the 
children being discussed as they see the children daily they can share 
intelligence about friendship groups etc. This is also a helpful to the school 
representatives as they often find out that the children in their school know 
children in another school so they can link together which children know each 
other and their friendship groups. The cross city working partnerships are 
therefore very strong.  
 
Leyton and Clare said that teams' such as the health development team 
headed by Kelly, were imperative as school staff do not have the time to 
provide this education and support to their pupils. Clare added that each 
school has safeguarding procedures which they will adhere to; however it is 
difficult for school staff to find the time to provide one to one support sessions 
for their pupils. The support from the health development team with running 
these sessions is therefore vital and the relationship with the team and 
schools is very good.  
 
Clare advised that training on CSE had recently taken place for her new staff 
and today she had held some CSE awareness training for the student 
teachers.  Both training sessions had been well received.   It was important to 
stress that young people choosing to have sex is different from CSE. If a 
member of staff becomes aware that a pupil is sexually active, they will 
complete the risk assessment toolkit to make sure they are assessed against 
the CSE criteria. It is important to listen and that staff are aware to go on their 
gut instinct, so it is vital that all school staff have received specialist training.  
School staff are great at sharing information about the children in their school 
and are known as the 'eyes and ears'.  When schools have concerns that a 
child might be being sexually exploited they will always contact the parents of 
the child.  If the parent(s) are uninterested the school will contact children's 
social care team as it might be that the family are already known to them.  
 
In response to questions, Clare and Leyton clarified the following points: 

 Due to the relationships that have built up over time between schools, 
the health development team and other agencies, it is very difficult 



 
3 

 

when a member of staff leaves to maintain the relationships with the 
other agencies in the city.  Leyton said that his safeguarding lead is 
leaving shortly and there have been no thoughts as to a handover 
process and it is likely that he will have to step in.  Clare added though 
that there is a lot of support available from the other agencies in the 
city.  

 There is no system in place to share information about children at risk 
of CSE however at the M.E.T operational group a representative for 
each child will attend so that everyone knows what school the child 
attends and who to contact with regard to a family member/carer. If 
there is an occasion someone cannot attend the MET meeting, all 
members of the MET operational group will receive the minutes and 
the contact details for each child at risk are listed within these. The 
strategy meetings on CSE is where all information is shared between 
agencies including data on peer association and any safeguarding 
concerns would be shared with agencies. The team around the child 
and parents/carers will attend meetings and the young person can also 
attend.  
 

Kelly Huggett, Health Development Officer advised that her role initially 
involved outreach work with schools to reduce numbers of teenage 
pregnancies through the SORTED programme which she co-ordinates and 
manages.  This programme has been very successful and is in its sixth 
successful year.  This has since led onto a targeted assessment and 
intervention tool to support young people aged between 12 and 16 to enable 
honest and practical conversations about sex and relationships. Early 
identification of young people is the key in tackling potential problems.  Young 
people who are displaying risk taking behaviour or who have low self-esteem 
are the target group.  Young people can be referred by their school or an 
external agency for either single sex group workshops or one-to-one group 
sessions.  The referral criterion is attendance issues, behaviour issues and 
vulnerability. The programme consist of targeted Sex and Relationships 
Education (SRE) focussing on sexual activity, risk taking behaviour, goals and 
aspirations, confidence and self-esteem.  
 
Kelly explained that the health development team adhere to the Fraser 
guidelines which is an ethical framework which look at whether doctors should 
be able to give contraception advice or treatment to under 16 year olds 
without parental consent. It is important if a child is sexually active that they 
have access to contraception and sexual health services and are kept safe 
from those who could potentially exploit or harm them.  Best practice is 
always to involve the parents and it is important to build the confidence of 
children. Kelly advised though that often she has challenging parents who do 
not want their daughter to be receiving contraceptive advice.  In these 
situations the welfare of the child is centre and Kelly supports the parent and 
usually they are more upset that their daughter has not come to them for 
advice than the fact they are sexually active.  If a parent refuses to let Kelly 
work with their child, this will be escalated to CSC.  On the other hand there 
have been cases where the parents do not care that their teenage child is 
staying out all night etc. and this is when CSC team would get involved.  It is 



 
4 

 

important to educate and empower the young people so that they can make 
good choices.  
 
Young people have a choice on whether to attend these sessions however 
Clare added that she has never had a pupil not want to attend.  There are six 
sessions available.  The first session is usually low key as staff are aware that 
this can be a big deal for the child.  They will discuss confidentiality and it is 
up to the child whether they wish to disclose anything.  There is a waiting list 
for the service and the public health team will prioritise cases depending on 
their level of seriousness. Leyton added that timescales for managing CSE 
are crucial and having tools available to do something is imperative, waiting 
lists can be detrimental. Clare added that the resource need is there is just not 
enough of it.  
 
Ongoing support is required after the six sessions as the long term impact of 
their suffering it might lead to other risk taking behaviours such as substance 
misuse. If the substance misuse leads to criminal activity, sometimes this will 
come out at front and the reasons behind it are not appropriately investigated.  
Agencies are now mapping substance misuse across the city to establish the 
reasons behind this.   
 
Kelly advised that PSHE (Personal, Social, Health and Economic) Education 
is not compulsory for secondary schools but there is a program in place for all 
secondary schools in Portsmouth.  Clare and Leyton said that both children 
and teachers prefer to have external organisations come into the school to 
teach pupils about sexual health.  Children feel uncomfortable talking to their 
teachers about things and as teachers have a disciplinarian role in schools; 
pupils often do not feel comfortable talking to them about these matters. They 
have found the most proactive approach is to invite the SORTED team and 
other external organisations into the school to help with these sessions.  
 
Kelly advised that she is a member of the MET operational group and 
regularly attends meetings.  This is very important as her service is involved 
with many of the young people or they may have referred young people to the 
MET.  At these meetings, actions can arise and all partners have a 
responsibility to follow up these. City wide gaps are discussed and it allows for 
networking and a greater understanding of each other's services and their 
challenges and successes.  There is a respect for each other's services and 
strategies and local and national CSE campaigns are shared and discussed.  
Attendance at these meetings is very good and she felt there was excellent 
multi agency working. Kelly advised she shares the information learned at 
these meetings with her team.  
 
Kelly advised that she also supports colleagues within schools to ensure they 
are complying with the risk assessment tool kit.  Kelly advised that the work 
her team does cannot be done in silo and without schools providing her team 
with the information so it really is a team effort across the city. CSE training 
has been provided to school staff by the team which was supported by 
Barnados and excellent feedback has been received from this.  
 
Kelly advised that she attends team meetings for the other areas within the 



 
5 

 

public health service to raise awareness of CSE and extend the message to 
her colleagues who may be working with at risk children.  The health 
development team have also been supporting the Operation Make safe 
campaign.  This is vital as it is reaching out to other areas such as taxis and 
licensed premises that may see different situations of concern and can report 
this.   
 
It is important to note that CSE does not just refer to men exploiting 
women/girls, although this is more common.  Clare advised that in her school 
she has seen cases of girls exploiting other girls.  Kelly advised that as part of 
the SORTED sessions she is educating boys to think about what they need to 
do to keep themselves safe and to realise the consequences of their actions 
so that they do not go on to become perpetrators.  She has also had cases 
where a young person is both a perpetrator and victim of CSE at the same 
time.  This needs to managed and it can be very complex.  
 
In response to questions the following points were clarified by Leyton, Clare 
and Kelly: 

 If there is no evidence of CSE prosecution cannot be taken forward, 
however partners can still safeguard young people without a 
conviction.  

 Sometimes the school will bypass the parent if they are concerned that 
the young person is being abused by a family member - it is a 
judgement call and they will discuss their concerns with the MASH 
team as they are the experts.  It may be that the CSC team are away of 
the family already.  Every case is different and they ensure they have 
researched the background first before taking action.  

 In response to a question about what schools would like to see, Clare 
said that she wished there were more resources for early preventative 
work. Also the SORTED team used to run a session for whole of year 
10 however as council resources have been cut these sessions have 
been cut.  

 Clare and Leyton advised that both Portsmouth Academy and Charter 
Academy run PSHE sessions in their schools. There is no data 
available on which schools in the city run PSHE lessons in schools as 
there is no statutory requirement to hold these.  Clare advised that 
Portsmouth academy have cut down the amount of PSHE lessons and 
also merged this with IT.  Due to the pressure of teaching targets, no 
teacher wants a pupil to miss for their class so that they can attend a 
one-to -one session with Kelly.  They prefer the child to do this during 
the PSHE lesson instead, however that means that they miss whatever 
is being taught in that lesson which is just as important. Leyton added 
that the quality of the PSHE is not adequate enough and there is 
limited support available to schools.   This situation is not the same for 
all schools.  Kelly advised that she has delivered bespoke sessions to 
staff to raise the awareness of the programme so that staff will have an 
understanding to the reasons the pupils may be missing a lesson.  

 There has been an increased prevalence with online CSE and this is 
more difficult to manage. Kelly's team has received numerous referrals 
for online CSE and new guidance on online risks has been sent to 
schools. Often it is the quieter children who feel more confident talking 



 
6 

 

to people online who are at risk and the information they are prepared 
to reveal can be frightening. Young people are normalising things such 
as naked selfies and graphic images however as a school it is difficult 
to manage as the young person will deny sending/receiving these 
images. Parents often will have no idea about the world of social media 
and often do not know what their children are doing online. Schools 
would welcome any advice on training on how to deal with online risks 
to young people. Children also need to be educated and empowered 
so they are aware of the risks involved in what they are doing and are 
more cautious about what they do online.  Kelly advised that the online 
safety officer had recently sent out invitations to schools for training 
workshops and she supports the officer with this training.  

 With regard how the Alice's diary campaign run by Hampshire Police, 
has been received by young people both Clare and Leyton said that 
they are unfortunately quite blasé about it and think it won't happen to 
them so are uninterested. Kelly added though that if messages are 
coming across in multiple forms, as long as the campaign gets through 
to one child, that’s one less young person who will protected.  

 The evidence in Portsmouth is different to Rochadale and Rotheram as 
there is no evidence that the BME community are being 
misrepresented. However there is evidence to suggest that 16-18 year 
olds not in employment, education or training and some Looked After 
Children are at risk of poor outcomes and this is a risk factor of CSE.  
This age group may be missed as they are not in statutory education. 
Whilst a child is at school there are protocols in place which may 
identify safeguarding concerns. Despite the age to leave education 
increasing, she is not aware of how this is being managed.  

 The issue of whether the BME were under represented had been 
discussed at MET meetings.  Kelly advised that she had taken this 
back to the public health intelligence team who provided her with 
information of different ethnic groups in Portsmouth secondary schools.  
The aim is to ensure we deliver prevention work to reach all young 
people in Portsmouth.  Kelly advised that she had delivered a sex and 
relationship workshop with trainers from different ethnic backgrounds to 
women.  The aim was that the women would share this knowledge with 
their communities.  Kelly advised though that she had been surprised 
on how little knowledge the women had in this area which was a 
concern.    

 
Ross Lee, Licensing Officer  
Ross introduced his report attached to the agenda and advised that the 
council's licensing team work very closely with Hampshire Police.  They co-
share an office with the Hampshire constabulary Licensing and Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Team which allows intelligence to be easily shared which has been 
invaluable in protecting the public.   
 
Underpinning the work of the service is the recently approved statement of 
licensing policy for the control, supervision and enforcement of the hackney 
carriage and private drivers in the city. The licensing policy is a strict policy for 
taxi drivers and can be used for drivers who do not act appropriately.  
 



 
7 

 

The licensing team have worked alongside Hampshire Constabulary and 
Barnados to help promote Operation Make Safe.  The team have encouraged 
and ensured the use of strap lines by taxi operators to all their drivers with the 
electronic message:  
Young person in taxi? Who are they with? Whare are they going? Are they 
safe? Any concerns call police on 101 quote OP MAKESAFE.  
 
With regard to the Operation Make Safe training taking place today and 
tomorrow (26th and 27th September), Ross advised that approximately 75 
drivers had signed up to the training which was encouraging and an 
improvement on previous years.  The team however had received some 
negative comments from drivers who felt that they did not need to attend.  
Members commented that if the drivers who attended these sessions 
feedback to their colleagues who did not attend that the sessions were 
informative, this could increase the numbers for next time.  
 
In response to questions Ross clarified the following: 

 All taxi drivers, including Uber taxi drivers, are checked to the highest 
level before being granted a licence.  

 There is no intention to make CSE training compulsory for taxi drivers.  
CSE is part of the taxi drivers compulsory test but this is a reading 
exercise only to give awareness, with a link if drivers wish to obtain 
further information.  
 

Councillor Horton said that she had attended the training session today and 
felt that it was very good.  There were group work tasks with case studies and 
she came out of the session feeling empowered that if there are concerns 
about CSE to report these without feeling humiliation if it turns out to be 
nothing. She felt this would be a good way of promoting the training to taxi 
drivers that they are the 'eyes and ears of the community' and are helping to 
keep Portsmouth young people safe.   
 
Members thanked all the witnesses for their valuable contribution to their 
review.   
 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Will Purvis 
Chair 

 

 




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 26 September 2016

